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December 22, 1008

Larry Noble

Federal Election Commission
099 E Street, N'W
Washmgton, D.C. 20463

Re: Akins v. FEC No. 92-1864
Dear Mr. Noble

On September 11, 1998 | recerved an order from the United States Count of Appeals for

the District of Columbia m which the above referenced case was remanded to the FEC for
further proceedings

| would appreciate any information you may have on how and when the Commission
intends to proceed wyth thus matter

Friednfan
General Counse! of AIPA(

¢¢: Howard Kohr




iy

‘.:‘1_ FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
".

| B/

T

Philip Friedman

General Counsel, AIPA(
Ifshin & Friedman, P.L.L.C
BRE 16™ Street, NW

Washington, DC 20006

Dear Mr. Friedman

This letter 15 in response to your letter of December 22, 1998, in which \
e status of the remand from the LS. Count of Appeals for the Distnict of Columl
ibove-ciled case

he remand has been assigned to a stal ormey in the Office of the Genera
['he remand has been assigned to a staff attormney n the Off { the General

ounsel and a report to the Commussion 15 being prepared. We wall inform vou
( | and a report to the Comm being prep W Il inform 1

i

HTH‘I'I'."-..i..I.!;‘i‘- once the Commission makes a determinabion as to how to pProccc d

If vou have anv questions, please conlact Anne A. Weissenbomn, the sen
attorney assigned o thas matter, at ( 202) 694-1650

L
Lawrence M. Noble

Cieneral Counsel




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

FEBLO J 3840 'SY

wnoss SENSITIVE

In the Matter of

American Israel Public Affairs Committee

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT

. BACKGROUND
A. Purpose of Report

I'his report is in response 1o the decision of the United States Supreme Court in

1998). 1in which the Court vacated the decision of

D.C. Cir., 1996) and

determine whether or not
AIPAC s expenditures s regulations
defining “membership organization.” as ‘'membership

communications,” and

thereby fall outside the scope of * "expenditures’ that could qualify it as a “political
commitiee.’” 118 S.Ct. at 1788 7, 1998, vacated the

order of the district court in Akins, et al. v,

which had granted summary judgment to t

2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8), and ordered that the district court in 1
Commission for further proceedings. Akins, et o

1998




B. History of the Case

['his matter began in 1989 when James E. Akins, George Ball. Richard

Robert J. Hanks, Andrew 1. Killgore and Orin Parker (collectively referred to herein as

%

n wnich was dgesignat

“Akins”) filed an admimistrative complaint with the Commissior

MUR 2804. The complaint contained numerous allegations that the Amencan lsrael

Public Affairs Committee (“AIPAC™) and other organizations had violated the Federal

Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“FE( In the complaint

lia, that AIPAC had failed to reg 1 as a political

i
|

5% 431(4), 433, and 434, and that it had made

£ 441b

corporate contributions in violation of 2US8.C

11n MUR 2804 lasted more than three years, involved hundred

] Nne investiealio

ol imterrogatories, letters and affidavits, and create trative record ol nearly

I'he Commission, on June 16, 1992, found probable cause to believe that

1 (W)

¢ contnoulions or u"\}"‘..':';-.ii..". 5 I

\IPAC had made corporate

""u.".;.ma-_- some ol ils campagn related comm s and activities w erne Ii.li'i'\ led

: .._'.'i.l:l,_'? ”]L' Act [he

Commission also decided, however, to exercise its prosecutorial discretion by taking ne

four

further action regarding this finding. The Statement of Reasons signed by

1ssioners and dated July 27, 1992 stated

Lomm

| T]he General Counsel concluded that the group of persons AIPAL
claimed as its members lacked a sulficient right to participate in

the governance of the organization to meet the Commission’s
membership criteria. The General Counsel principally cited the
fact that group members at issue here had no nght to vote for the

tive Commuttes) « AP AL | he

t those members of AIPAC

governing body (the Execu
General Counsel acknowledged that those




tended the annual Policy |
of the total “n
|]L,' (| |:|.i ided, hos
did not meet the (

organizationa

il 1 Insci
sion’' s membershi

in a series of advisory opinions following

Thus, we found probable cause 10 believe

2 1 § 441b. We also agreed with the
the AIPAC situation pr

presented &

m also concluded on June 16, 19

adju the Commission
examined the major purposes of the
particular AIPAC expenditures

probable cause to believe that AIPA

report as

nal Right to Work Committee




y register and report as a political committee. The complaint did not challenge the

on's decision to find probable cause to believe that AIPAC had violated

e no further action in this regard, and thus did not challenge

n March 30, 1994, ruled in an unreported opinion on the

parties ommission

motion
defimtio

FEC s

YUTPOSt

test as first articulated by

Buckleyv was interpreted properly by the

law requires the Court to examine the major purpose
determine 1f that organization is a political con

also found that the Commission’s application of the major purpose 1«

sonable ]__ at 16.

§ Akins filed an appeal with the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District

a remand to the district court for clanfication, the Court of Appeals

ower court’s decision, hinding that the Commission

43140 A) was "mistaken,” and

f coordination by

didate committees, the appea wrt addressed the AIPAC expenditure:

I the twao




By . -

Supreme Court decisions principally relied upon by the Commission when formulating

Its “major purpose” test, namely Buckley v. Valeo, 424 U.S. 1 (1976) (per curiam) and

FEC v. Massachusetts Citizens for Life, Inc.. 479 U.S. 238 (1986), and found that the

Court in each had addressed only independent expenditures, not coordinated
expenditures, and thus had been concerned with a constitutional issue different from that
involved in the AIPAC situation. “There is no constitutional problem with applying
§ 431(4)A) to AIPAC or to other organizations making confributions (or coordinated
expenditures) exceeding the statutory limits.” 101 F.3d at 742. (Emphasis in original.)
Later in this opinion the court stated: “There is no contention that AIPACs
disbursements were independent expenditures, so there 1s no constitutional barrier to
application of § 431(4)(A). The FEC found that AIPAC likely made campaign
contributions in excess of $1,000. Its decision that no probable cause existed to believe
AIPAC was a political committee, and its consequent dismissal of appellants” complaint,
were theretore based on 11s mistaken interpretation of § 431(4)(A)." 101 F.3d at 744

On June 1, 1998, the Supreme Court issued an opinion addressing the decision of
the Court of Appeals. The Court focused upon two issues: 1) the standing of the
complainants in the enlorcement action to challenge the Commission’s decisions, with
regard to which the Court found in favor of the complanants, 118 5.Ct. at 1787, and
2) *|w|hether an organization that otherwise satishies the Act’s definition of a “political
committee,” . . . nonetheless falls outside that definition because “its major purpose” is not
the nomination or election of candidates.”™ Id. In the latter repard, and as stated above,

the Court vacated the appeals court’s decision and remanded the case for further

proceedings, citing the Commussion™s proposed “new rules defiming "membership




arganization

presented by [the major purpose/pe

Court stated

In our view, the FEC should pr une whether or not
AIPAC s expenditures qualify as "'m wership communications,”
and thereby fall outside the scope Xp

quality 1t as a "pohitical commuttee

! lecides that d
its new rules, the communicatio

that could

espite
excephon

» 0 N __..|:.':'. or 1!'-'-
then ||||.' lower courts ¢ respon lents”
vermys §s

T e communicanve
context in which the case anses, | he other hand. the FEC
decides that AIPAC I-.'.L“'l‘.l-n.' all wilhir |

communications L"-.'L'L'|"|II'I

arguments, can sull evaluate the

STATUORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS AND
PROPOSED REVISIONS

AN4) delines “political commitic

as “any committee, club
association, or other grot 1t .

s which recerves contributions -|._":'|'i.".:'.“-”:l'ihf N CXCCSE
ol $1.000 during a calendar vea

penditures aggregaling in excess of
\.'\'.' OO dunine a calenc

bits corporations, including
incorporated member

rship orgamz

connection with any el

election”™ for
corporations may, however, make

contaning expre

IVOCAcy

personne and their families (their “restricied class’

considered “contributions” or “expenditures,”

or corporation 1s not organized pnimarily for the purposc

S.C §431(BWIYMiu). Seealso 2 US.C. §441b6(b)




Secalso 11 C.F.R § 114.7(a)
The complaint in MUR 2804 was filed in January 9. At that time the
77, defined “members™ as “
p in a membership
soclation, cooperalive, or corpo

person 1s nol considered a member under |
membership is a contribution 1o a
§& 100.8(b)AYiv) and 114.1{e) (1988). The regulations
prganization” or “members.”

In 1982 the U.S. Supreme Court addres
‘members” in the context of o case involving the solicitation of contributions to a

separate segregated fund, FEC v. National Right to Work Committee, 459 U.S

(1982) ("NRWC"). The Court cited the legislative history of 2 LL.S.C. § 441b(b)(4)((
nembership in nonstock corporations to stockholders of
to members of labor unions “suggesis that some relatively
significant financial or orgamizational attachment 18 required

04. The Court rejected the lower

ourt staled

Although membership cards are ultimately sent to those who
either contribute or respond 1n some other way to respondent

mailings, the NRWC's solicitation letters themselves make no




recierence 1o me

asserted me

incorporation and otl
i -|

disclaimed the existence
sircumstances, those solicited were
5.-r'|t|-|.-.|-_- structure ol l\xll'f“'«.l'l.t L

MAUlory proviso

"y
93 the Commission res

and to elaborate

y association means a membership organization
cooperative, corporation without capital stock,

or international labor organization that

articles and by

I'he definition of “*members

ns all persons who are current
requircments for membership in 8 membership

lv accept the member ~'r'.;|'-.|-.-~-.~

| S sl myf 5
bér, and either;

Have some significamt financial attachment 1o the

membership association, such as a sigmbicant investment

or ownership stake (but nor merely the payment ol dues).




vole direct

Htory

ol the membe

il least one

ng body ol

y vote directly for

of the membersh

Lourt i

prevent enlorcement ol
Plaintiffs argued that neither
lation’s definitic

ld be included

peals found |

| not attempt to defing




organizational attachment could le t ing oneself to the ethical standards of an

organization, as with the AMA, or serving on policy formulating commitiees, as with the

Chamber. 69 F.3d at 605

-

In December 22, 1997, the Commuission, in response 1o a Petition

ing submuitied by ies Bopp. Jr.. on behalf of the National Rig

., published a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking in the Federal Register

(1997). In this Notice the Commission retained the present definition

of “membership association™ and focused upon the definition of "members,” stating that

the effect of the revised membership rules “should be to expand the class of persons

L":]"lk‘llfL‘-.- 3 DLDEHE | = It roposed Lhr

ree alternative combinations o

financial and orgamzational attachments | three alternatives retained the current
provisions which recognize as members persons who have a strongs financial interest in
an association than the payment of annual dues

Following receipt of written cor ¢ wd a public heanng held on April
1998, the Commussion on October 22, 1998, determined to 1 1sider the propo

with another emphasis. On December 17, 1998, the Commission published a sec
-

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking which focused upon the required charactenistics
membership organization. The proposed revisions of Section 100.8(b}4Xiv)iA)

change the present reference to "membership association” to “membership organ

M
and would set out seven attiibutes of such an orgamz

1) 1s composed of members;

2) Expressly states the nights, qualifications, obligations and requirements for
membership in its articles. byvlaws and other formal orgamzational

document -




Is self-governing, such that the power and awthority to direct and control

the association 15 vested in some or all members, pursuant to its articles

bylaws and other formal organizationa

Makes 1ts articles, bvlaws and other formal orgamizational documents

freely available to its members.,

Expressly solicits members

Expressly acknowledges the acceptance of membership, such as by
sending a membershup card or inclusion on a membership newsletter list;

and

) Is not organized primarily for the purpose of influencing the nomination

for election, or election, of any individual for Federal office
s added.)
Section 100.8(b)}4)iv)(B) of the revised proposed rules sets out a definition of
“members” for purposes of this section

1 !.’i\: lEIM MCMDETs INCIUGes al I

WIS0Ns %

requirements Ior m . 1 a membership orgamization, matively

accepl the membership organization’ itation to become a member, affirm

their membership on at least an annual basis and

1) Have some significant financial attachment to the membership

orgrmization, such as a sigmhcant investmen! or owner ~’."|.'P slake;

» required to pay on a regular basis a specifi

int predetermined by the organization, or

Have a significant organizational attachment tc
organization which includes direct and enforce:

governing rights. For example, such rights ¢ clude the right to vote
directly or indirectly for at least one individual on the membership

organization’'s highest governing board; the nght to vote directly |

¥ L}
organization officers; the right to vote on policy questions where
highest governing body of the membership organization is oblig

|| I st . 1 44 . 3 oy
* by the results; or the right to participate directly in simli

the organization’s governance

(Emphasis added. )




I'he deadline for receipt of comments on these proposed rules was February 1,
1999, Numerous comments have been received

[1l. RECOMMENDED COMMISSION ACTION

In light of the Commission’s ongoing rulemaking involving the membership
organization regulations at 1ssue in MUR 2804, this Office recomunends that the

Commuission hold any reopening of this matter in abeyance pending the conclusion of the

subject rulemaking and the promulgation of new regulations. A report r1.*u..wn111r11::|m_1i11;

appropriate action regarding this matter will be submitted shortly after the new

reeulations are finalized
If the Commission approves this recommendation, both the cmn]':-l.m'|.1|11.-; and
AIPAC will be notified of the determination

IV. RECOMMENDATION

Hold any reopening of MUR 2804 in abevance pending promulgation of final
revised regulations pertaining to “membership organizations.”

"
B -
A F

Lawrence M. Noble

General Counsel

Staff Assigned: Anne A. Weissenborn




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of

American Israel Public Affairs
Committea.

CERTIFICATION

I, Marjorie W. Emmons, Secretary of the Federal
Election Commission, do hereby certify that on
March 3, 1999 the Commission decided by a wvote
of 6-0 to take the following actions in MUR 2804:

Hold any recpening of MUR 2804 in abeyance
pending promulgation of final revised
ragulations pertaining to "membership
organizations."

Commigsicners Elliott, Mason, McDonmld, Sandstrom,

Thomas, and Wold voted affirmatively for the decision.

& Marjori

Secrest

W. Emmons
of the Commission

/ /,u.z Y. bh-e-
.Z

Received in the Secretariat: PFri., Feb. 26, 1999 9:00 a.m.
Circulated to the Commission: Fri., Feb. 26, 1999 12:00 p.m.
Desdline for vote: Wed., Mar. 03, 1999 4:00 p.m

viv




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHING 10N, |

Philip Fiadman, General Counsel
American Israel Public Affairs Commitiee
Ifshin & Friedman, PLLC

Suite 400

BBR Sixteecnth Street, NW

Washington, DC 20006

MUR 2804
Dear Mr. Friedman

'his purpose of this letter i1s to inform you and vour chient, the Amenican lsrael
Public Aflairs Committee (" AIPAC™), of the recent determination of the Federal Election
Commission taken in response to the decision of the United States Supreme Court in
FEC v. Akins, etal., 118 S1.C.. 1777 (1998). Following the subsequent remand from the
United States District Coun for the District of Columbia, the Commuission, on March 3,
1999, voted to hold any reopening of MUR 2804 in abevance pending promulgation of
final revised regulations pertaining to “membership organizations.” Should the
Commission take any additional steps with regard to MUR 2804 in the future, you will be
notified immediately

If you have any guestions, please contact Anne A, Weissenbom, the attomey
assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1650

sincerely.

Lawrence M. Noble

Leneral Counscel




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

] l_.j Ij TJ
Daniel M. Schember, Esquire
Gaffney & Schember, P.C
Suite 225
1666 Connecticut Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20009

RE: MUR 2804
Dear Mr. Schember:

I'his purpose of this letter is to inform you and your clients, the complainants in
MUR 2804, of the recent determination of the Federal Election Commission taken in

118 St.Ct. 1777 (1998). Following the subsequent remand from the United States District
Court for the District of Columbia, the Commission, on March 3, 1999, voted to hold any
reopening of MUR 2804 in abeyance pending promulgation of final revised regulations
pertaining to “membership organizations.”

We ask that you inform your clients of this Commission determination. Should
the Commission take any additional steps with regard to MUR 2804 in the future, you

will be notified immediately

If you have any questions, please contact Anne A. Weissenborn, the attorney
assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1650

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble

General Counsel
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March 18, 1999

Larry Noble
Federal Election Commmssion
000 E Street, NW

Washingion, D.C. 25463

Re: MUR 2804
[Dear Mr. Noble

Thank you for your letter of March 8, 1999 in which you advised that the Commission has
voted to place in abeyance any reopening of MUR 2804 pending promulgation of final
revised regulations pertaining to membership organizations. AIPAC objects to this
determination and formally requests that the Commission promptly make a final resolution
of a matter that has been pending for nearly 10 years

As AIPAC has consistently mamtamed, the Commission made a gross error when. on the
grounds that AIPAC is not a membership organization, it found AIPAC in violation of the
Act. Indeed, the simple fact that the Commission i1s now engaged m final revised
regulations to clanfy ambiguities in its membership regulations -- that the Commussion
uself acknowledged were ambiguous when it inittally found AIPAC in violation of the Act
-- underscores the fact that the only legal determmation the Commission could possibly
reach on AIPAC’s membership status under the facts of MUR 2804 is that AIPAC is, and
always has been, a constitutionally protected membership group

e Commission’s consideration of revised membership regulations, although probative to
underscormg the Commission’s mitial error in finding AIPAC in violation of the Act, is
wholly irrelevant to any determination of AIPAC's purported violation of the Act in 1989
After several vears of bemg portrayed in a false light precisely because of the
Commission's erroneous legal conclusion (one presumably recognized by the Supreme
Court), AIPAC and its members are entitled to the Commission’s prompt determination
that AIPAC and its members have fully complied with the law and have -- at all times --
lawfully exercised their rights to participate in the political process

Accordingly, AIPAC requests that the Commission expeditiously conclude the decade-
long mistake known as MUR 2804, In fulfilling this request, AIPAC urges the
Commission to specifically determme that AIPAC never made a single impermissible




Lawrence M. Noble, E. .

March 18, 1999
Page 2

corporate contribution on the unambiguous grounds that every one of the communications

allegedly mvolving express advocacy was an internal communication among AIPAC s

members
Thank you for vour consideration of this matter

Smcerely,

Philip Friedman
General Counsel of AIPAC

cc: Howard Kohr
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Apnl 26, 1999

Larry Naoble

Federal Election Commission
999 E Street, N'W
Washington, D.C. 20463

Re: MUR 2804
Dear Mr. Noble:

Enclosed please find a copy of a letter I sent to you several weeks ago in which AIPAC
requested the Commission take immediate action on resolving what remains of the above
referenced action

Thank you for your consideration of this matter. If vou have any questions, please do not
hesnate 1o contact me

Sincerely,

Philip Friedman
General Counsel of AIPAC

cC Commissioner Thomas
Commissioner Wold
Commissioner McDonald
Commussioner Sandstrom
Commussioner Elliott
Commussioner Mason
Howard Kohr
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ATTORNLYE AT LAw
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March 18, 1990

Larry Noble

Federal Election Commission
900 E Street, NW
Washmgton, D.C. 20463

Re: MUR 2804
Dear Mr. Moble

Thank vou for your letter of March B, 1999 in which you advised that the Commission has
voled to place in abeyance any reopening of MUR 2804 pending promulgation of final
revised regulations pertaining to membership organizations. AIPAC objects to this
determination and formally requests that the Commission promptly make a final resolution
of a matter that has been pending for nearly 10 years

As AIPAC has consistently mamtamed, the Commission made a gross error when, on the
grounds that AIPAC is not a membership organization, it found AIPAC in violation of the
Act. Indeed, the simple fact that the Commission is now engaged in final revised
regulations to clanfy ambiguities in its membership regulations -~ that the Commission
itself acknowledged were ambiguous when it mitially found AIPAC m violation of the Act
-- underscores the fact that the only legal determination the Commission could possibly
reach on AIPAC s membership status under the facts of MUR 2804 is that AIPAC is, and
always has been. a constitutionally protected membership group

The Commission's consideration of revised membership regulations, although probative to
underscormg the Commussion’s initial error m finding ATPAC in violation of the Act, 1s
wholly irrelevant to any determination of AIPAC s purported violation of the Act in 1989
Afier several years of being portrayed in a false light precisely because of the
Commussion's erroneous legal conclusion (one presumably recognized by the Supreme
Court), AIPAC and its members are entitled to the Commission’s prompt determination
that AIPAC and its members have fully complied with the law and have -- at all times --
lawfully exercised their rights to participate in the political process

Accordingly, AIPAC requests that the Commission expeditiously conclude the decade-
long mistake known as MUR 2804. In fulfilling this request, AIPAC urges the
Commission to specifically determine that AIPAC never made a single impermissible




Lawrence M. Noble, . .

March 18, 1999
Page 2

corporate contribution on the unambiguous grounds that every one of the communications
allegedly involving express advocacy was an internal communication among AIPAC’s
members

Mhank you for yodr consideration of this matter

Sincerely,

§

Philip Friedman
General Counsel of AIPAC

Howard Kohr




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

mar 1l 4197
In the Matter of

MUR 2804

SENSITIVE

American Israel Public Affairs Committee

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REFPOR1

I. BACKGROUND

On March 3, 1999, the Commuission voled to hold any reopening of MUR 2804 in
abeyance pending promulgation of final revised regulations pertaining to “membership
organizations.” On March 8, 1999, counsel for the American Israel Public Affairs
Committee (“AIPAC™) was informed of this Commission determination

'he issue of whether or not to reopen MUR 2804 is before the Commission as a
result of the decision of the United States Supreme Court in FEC v. Akins, 118 S.Ct

§ oy

1777 (1998). This decision and its history are discussed in some detail in the General

Counsel’s Report of February 25, 1999, which contained the recommendation for the

Commission's March 3, 1999 determination. For purposes of the present report the
Commission’s attention is directed to the fact that the Supreme Court remanded the case
for particular purposes, expressly citing the Commission’s proposed “new rules defining
‘membership organization’,” and stating that “[i]n our view, the FEC should proceed to
determine whether or not AIPAC’s expenditures qualify as *membership
communications,’ and thereby fall outside the scope of "expenditure’ that could quality it

as a “political committee™.” 118 S.CL at 1788




On March 18, 1999, and later on Apnl 26, 1999, counsel for AIPAC responded to
the March 8, 1999 letter from this Office, requesting “that the Commission expeditiously

conclude the decade-long mistake known as MUR 28047 Counsel “urges™ further that

the Commission “specifically determine that AIPAC never made a single impermissible

corporate contribution on the unambiguous grounds that every one of the
communications allegedly involving express advocacy was an internal communication
among AIPAC's members.” In support of these requests, counsel poinis to the
Lommission s MECINE revisions of the -".":_'-.il-.’l'.!"."-" govarmng I‘.h'rn!‘-crhhlp 1"[‘-__'L1.J|if..'|“L'|]'l.‘1
1o clanfy ambiguities,” and asserts that the only legal determination the Commuission
could possibly reach on AIPAC's membership status under the facts of MUR 2804 is
that AIPAC 15, and always has been, a constitutionally protected membership group.”
{Attachment 1). Counsel also asserts that “the Commission’s consideration of revised
membership regulations 15 wholly irrelevant to any determination of AIPAC's
purported violation of the Act in 1989." (Id.)
I1. ANALYSIS

\s stated above, the issue of whether to reopen MUR 2804 matter is before the
Commission as the result of a remand from the United States Supreme Court. The

1 cannot make a determination with regard to reopening this matter, or to

bringing it to a close as desired by AIPAC, without complying with the Court’s
instructions and without having adequate bases for such compliance. A principal and
necessary basis will be any promulgation of new rules governing the definition ol

“membership organization.” Without such bases the Commission would undoubtedly be

subject to a new suit filed pursuant 1o 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8)




s Office recommends that the Commuission deny ATPA( request that MLIR

2804 be addressed immediately and closed, and authonize this Office to s
letter to counsel for AIPAC notifying him of this determination and citing the Supreme

Court’s decision as its basis

V. RECOMMENDATIONS

Deny the request of the Amencan Israel Political Action Committee that the
we MUR 2804

e

Commission immediately address and ¢

Authonize the Office of General Counsel 1

Lawrence M. Noble

General Counsel

Letter lrom counsel for ALPAL

Proposed letter 1o counsel {or AIPA(




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of

American Israel Public Affairs
Committas.

CERTIFICATION

I, Marjorie W, Emmons, Secretary of the Federal
Election Commission, do hereby certify that on
May 17, 1999, the Commission decided by a vote
of 6-0 to take the following actions in MUR 2804:

1. Deny the reguest of the American Israel
Political Action Committee that the
Commission immediately address and closa
MUR 28B04.

Authorize the Office of Genaral Counsel to
send the letter, as recommended in the
General Counsel's Report dated May 11, 1959.

Commissioners Ellicott, Mason, McDonald, Sandstrom,

Thomas, and Wold voted affirmatively for the decision.

Attest:

518-99 s 7) bontmond

Date ie W. Emmons
Secretary of the Commission

Received in the Secretariat: Tues., May 11, 1959 4:19 a.m.
Circulated to the Commission: Wed., May 12, 1995 11:00 a.m.
Deadline for vote: Mon., May 17, 1999 4:00 p.m.

viv




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTOMN, DO 204k)

May 21, 1999
Philip Friedman
General Counsel
American Israel Public Affairs Committee
Ifshin & Friedman, P.L.L.C
888 16th Street, NW, Suite 400
Washington, DC 20006

Dear Mr. Frniedman

I'he Federal Election Commission has received your letters of March 18, 1999, and
1

April 26, 1999, in which you request that the Commuission take immediate action to resolve any
remaining issues in MUR 2804 and to make a final determintion in that matter

'he Commission has considered and demed this request. MUR 2804 is again before the
Commission as the result of the decision of the United States Supreme Court to remand the civil
action designated FEC v. Akins for purposes of having the Commission “determine whether or
nol AIPAC’s expenditures,” in light of new revisions to the Commission’s regulations defining
“membership organization,” “qualify as ‘membership communications,’ and thereby fall outside
the scope of * *‘expenditures’ that could qualify it as a *political committee”.” 118 S.CL 1777,
1788 (1998). The Commuission cannot bring MUR 2804 to a close without complving with the
Supreme Court’s instructions and withoul having adequate bases for such compliance
A principal and necessary basis will be any promulgation by the Commuission of new rules
governing the definition of “membership orgamization.” As you are undoubtedly aware, the
Commission is presently in the midst of such a rulemaking

Once any new rules governing “membership organizations™ are promulgated, the

Commission will immediately address MUR 2804 and take any appropnate actions

L Lawrence M. Noble

Ceneral Counsel




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

blic Affairs Commitiee
GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT

ACTIONS RECOMMENDED
luate the Commuission’s findings in MUR 280«

States Supreme Court's remand in FEC v. Akins, ef al
(1998); find, pursuant to revised 11 CF.R. § 114.1(e)(1), that the Amencan
Affairs Committee (“AIPAC™) was a2 membership organizatios
by MUR 2804; adhere 1o the Commission's earlier determination that there was no
probable cause to believe AIPAC violated 2 US.C, §5§ 433 and 434; and close the file in
MUR 2804R
II. BACKGROUND

A. Purpose of Report

This report is 1n response (o the decision of the United S

FEC v, Akins, et al., in which the Court vacated the decision of the Court of Appeals in

Akins, et al. v. FEC, 101 F. 3d 731 (D.C. Cir. 1996), and remanded the case fo

MLUR 2804 was closed in the Enforcement Prniontization System ("EPS™) when th
Commission ongmally closed the file in that enforcement action. Afl
remanded FEC v. Akins, et al 1o the Commuission, the resulting n

to distinguish it from the onginal enlorcement matie




of having the Commuission “determine whether or not AIPA
new revisions to the Commission’s regulations defimng “membership orgamzation,’

would “qualify as *‘membership communications,” and thereby fall outside of the scopt

‘expenditures’ that could qualify it as a ‘political commuitee.™ LLS. at 29" Un

March 3, 1999, the Commission approved the recommendation of this Office that it hold
any reopening of MUR 2804 in abeyance pending promulgation of final revised
regulations pertaining to membership orgaruzations. The Commission’s revised
regulations addressing “membership orgamzations™ and the definition of “members™
became final on November 2, 1999, Therefore, it is now an appropnate time for the

Commission to address the issue that was the subject of the Supreme Court’s remand

The presemt report summanzes the enforcement and htigation hast

MUR 2B04, particularly with regard to the membership issue, sets out the new
regulations, and applies these regulations to the facts developed during the Commission’s
investigation in this matter. Based upon this analysis, the report recommends that the
Commission reopen MUR 2804; find that, in light of revised 11 C.F.R. § 114.1(e)(1),
AIPAC was a membership organization dunng the time period covered by MUR 2804,
adhere accordingly 1o its determination of no probable cause to believe AIPAC wviolated
2US.C. §8 433 and 434 by failing to regster and report as a political commattee; adhere
10 its determinations to find probable cause to believe AIPAC violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b

but o take no further action in that recard; and close the fle

I'he Court of Appeals subscquently vacated the order of the distnct court in Akins, et al

FEC, No. 92-1864 (D.D.C. Mar. 30, 1994), which had granted summary judgment to the
Commission in o .||'-':!||1--|1'--‘ uant to &43 /p and ardered the I
remand the case to the Commiss: further procecd Aar

HII Cir. 1995




Statutory and Procedural Backeround
I he requires that all political commitiees register with the Commission and

file periodic reports of receipts and expenditures. 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434. The Act

- b I
| commuiiee™ as mcluding groups of persons that make expenditures

0 dunng a calendar year. 2 US.C. § 431(4)A). Although

maorated entities an ibited from making expenditures 1n connection with fed

elections, 2 U |, comumumcations by an incorporated membership

orEanizanon o its members and exccutive or adnunistrative personnel on anv subject an
I ]

not prohibited by Section 441b becanse they are excluded from the Act's overall

definition of “expenditure,” provided the organization “is not organized pnmanly for the
purpose of influencing the nomuination for clection, or election, of any individual to
Federal office " 2USC E431(9BNut). Secalso 11 C.F.RE. §§ 114.3(a}2) and
114.7(h). Such commumcations would not count toward the $1,000 in “expenditures”
that gualify a membership orgamzation as a “political committee.”

The 1989 complaint in MUR 2804 alleged, inter alia, that AIPAC had made more

nunical

than $1.000 in comorate "|'-.|1|'|1 litures’ per year 1n the form of partisan comm

to individuals, and should have registered and reporied as a “political commuttee ™

AIPAC s position was that 1t was an issues-onenied organization, and that the spending

in question fiell within the exception to the prohibitions of 2 US.C. § 441b granted to a
e I--l='|'& orzanization’s communicalions to its members, which the Act exi mpis irom

the defim ‘expendit woled by the Supreme Court, of AIPAL s analvs

s communications werne correct, “those




' on - expendilures
lhcal commitled
Al the time of the
the Commssion's regulations at 11 C.F .}
ons could make partisan communications to |
mbers and executive and admimistrative personnel. Former 11 C.F.R

| 14.1(e)(1) defined “members™ for purposes of Part 114 as “all persons who are
currently satisfving the requirements for membershag
corporation without capital stock.”

1 FEC v. National Right to Work Committee, 459 U.S. 197 (1982), the
=l whether a nonprofit corporation without capital stock

5.C. § 441b(b)(4)C), solicit funds beyond its “members,” and had

1 that Section 441b himits solicitation by nonprofit corporations to “those persons

ied in some way to [the corporation] by 1ls corporate structure,” 459 1.8

ourt found that members of a non-stock corporation sh
by analogy to stockholders and union men
he analogy to stockholders and unmion members “'sugy
ively enduring and independently significant financial or organizational
attachment is required to be a ‘member’ under § 441b(b)(4)(C)." 1d. The Court also

1 it permissible for the Commuission o look to an organization’ s corporate charer

wlaws [or information about the mole of




he General Counsel’s Briel (“GC Bnef”') in MUR 2804, and later the General
Counsel's Report dated May 29, 1992 ("GC Report™), argued that certain individuals
whom AIPAC considered “members” did not qualify as such under the Act and that the
organization’s communications to them were therefore not exempt from the prohibitions
of 2 US.C. § 441b. Most individuals who “belonged” to AIPAC, and who on this basis
received partisan communications, had made a predetermined financial commitment in
the form of annual dues, and had taken affirmative steps to join; however, this Office
argued that they lacked sufficient rights to participate in the governance of the
organization. (G.C. Brief pages 99-101). This Office acknowledged that members of the
Executive Commuttee, which served as the board of directors, would quahfy as
“members” because they possessed the nght to elect other members of that Commttee as
well as the officers of AIPAC. (GC Report, page 21). Nonetheless, the much larger
roup of persons not on the Committee had no such voling opportumities. In addition,

while these latter individuals could vote for the adoption of the AIPAC Policy Statement
at each annual Policy Conference, only a small percentage were present at such
conferences 10 do so. (GC Bnef, page 101). (See further discussion of AIPAC's
structure at Section IV below,)

With respect to particular communications directed outside its restncted class, this
Office cited AIPAC's role as a contact between its purporied members and candidates or
their fund ruisers; AIPAC’s yvearly “campaign update”™ which covered the voting record:

ol | "|"'-'i‘-l'.:!'-'!f"!.' il ‘I"".

M " ol i ey - ¥ —_— k. -
raled ther elechion prosp ind lundrasing statu

learly indicated who should or should not be supported; and AIPAC's briefings on

candidates provided (o non-Executive Commitiee members al the annual Policy




Conference. This Ollhice also cited

contacts made with non-members who were potential

donors to specific candidates, and AIPAC's distnibution of candidate position papers

(G.C. Repon, pages 25-26)

Cn the basis of this information, this Office recommended that the Commssion

find probable cause to believe AIPAC had violated 2 US.C. § 441b. Although this

Office’s position, that many of the persons who belonged to AIPAC were nol “members,”

could have foreclosed AIPAC' s contention that its communications did not count as

expenditures for purposes of finding that it was a “political committee,” this Office

recommmended that the Commission find no probable cause to belhieve that AIPA(

had
JFLE

violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434 premised on the fact that AITPAC's “major purpose”

was lobbyving, not campaign-related activities. See Buckley v. \

v. Vale

On June 16, 1992, the Commission found probable cause to believe thal AIPAL

BT
Il

had violated 2 UU.S.C. § 441b: however, the Commission voled to take no further action

this regard.  On the same date, the Commussion also found no probable cause to behieve

that AIPAC had failed to register and report as a political committee, and closed the file

m MUR 2804

The Statement of Reasons 1ssued by the four Commissioners who had voled u

favor of finding probable cause to believe that AIPAC had violated 2 US.C. § 441b, but

also to take no further action, stated

We agreed with the General Counsel’s conclusion that AIPAC

did not meet the Commission”s meimbsg [ provided
in a senes ol advisory opintons following the NEWI

decision
Thus, we found probable cause to believe AIPAC violated

2US.C.5§441b. We also .'I.!.'I-.'L'-.I with the General |
the AIPAC situation presented

ounsel that
1 close que stion., and that the

Commussion should clarify s membership defimtion before




imposing penalties in close cases such as this, where the
arganization came close to meeting ths

Commssion’s membership cntena, but failed on a specific point

In a footnole, the same Statement of Reasons also addressed in general terms
polential violations of Section 441b by AIPAC based on communications with
individuals other than those it claimed as members. The footnote read

To the extent that any of the violations of Section 441 b outlined

by the General Counsel in his brief and report are not dependent

on the membership issue, we concluded that such instances, i.e.,

distnbuting candidate position papers or suggesting to candidate

fundraisers who to contact, did not warrant further pursuit since

the record did not reflect that these were significant violations
Statement of Reasons, page 3, In hese instances were not pursued in depth dunng
the enforcement process because they were deemed a part of the more general issue of
communications made lo recipients beyond the Executive Committee. Thus, any
violations of 2 U.S.C. § 441b ansing from these other contacts were not assigned

monetary values

The civil complaint filed on August 12, 1992, in U.S. District Court by the
complainants in MUR 2804, pursuant to 2 U.S.C, § 437g(a)(8), focused solely upon the
Commission’s decision to find no probable cause to believe that AIPAC had faled to
register and report as a political committee. This complant did not ch
Commission’s decision to [ind probable cause to believe that AIPAC
2 U.S.C. § 441D, bul to take no further action 1n thas regard, and thus did not address the

i1ssue of “membership

In March 1994, the District Court ruled on the parties” cross motions lor sumumary

judgment. The co




(D.D.C. Mar. 30, 1994) at | in MUR 2804 appealed the distncl

court’s decision to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. A divide

LK

panel affirmed the lower court’ 3d

d 348 (D.(

1995). However, on December 6, 1996, the Count of Appeals siting en banc reversed the

lower court’s decision, finding that the Commission’s interp

i
i

committee” at 2 U.S.C. 843 1{4) A) had been “mistaken,” and

The Umited States Supreme Court granied certioran on

In 1ts decision in FEC v Akins, the Supreme Co

commities, s falls outside that definition because ‘its major purpose’ 1s nol

the nominat The Court did not, however,

rule on the criteria for an organization to be deemed to be a ™

Iismal willmps
1 poiilical commuaiicc

he case 1o permu

il remanded

‘n..--lx|'.::_u, to the court, *[t] d Circunl
and endorsed by the Supreme by the detendant FLEX
|Akins' | assertion that the ajor purpose of ar
organization’s expendifure fi manization is a pohitical committee 1s
CITONCOWS |-'| at i'- L O O

( Emphasis added he court also found that th

application of the major purp { L 2804 had been 1

Commuission had 1id evidence of coordination

immittees, the appeals courl addressed the AIPAC expendn
coninbutions, nol as independent expenditures, and detern
that no probable cause existed 10 beheve AIPAL
Comnussion’s con

ol 2 US(




s of AlPAX

Commussion’s proposed “new rules defining *membership organiz:

Court found “could sigmiicantly affect the interpretive issue presented by [the major

purpose/political committee] question.” Id. at 28, In the Court's view, by remanding the

case, 11 could “take advantage of the relevant agency’s expertise, by allowing it to develop

a more precise rule that may dispose of this case, or at a mummum, will aid the

ciaching a more informed conclusion.” Therefore, the Court stated

[T]he FEC should proceed to determune whether or not AIPAC's
expenditures qualify as “membership communications,” and
thereby fall outside the scope of “expenditures” that could qualify
it as a “political commitiee.” If the FEC decides that despite ns
new rules, the communications here do not qualify for this
exception, then the lower courts, in reconsidenng respondents
arguments, can still evaluate the significance of the
communicative contexl in which the case an
hand, the FEC decides that AIPAC's activi

“membership communications” exception, th

(L he matter will

N | e
5C5. L, on

ties fall within th

L=

become moot

Id. at 2¢

I REVISED MEMBERSHIP REGULATIONS

On July 23, 1999, the Commuission transmitted to Congress final revised n

goverming who qualifies as a “member” of a membershap and defimin

this purpose both incorporated and non-incorporated membersl

rules became effective on November 2, 1999




With rcga d o incorporalcd

o 114 1{e) 1) define “membership organization y mean “a trade associalion,

V¢, COrp yration without |._',PJ'|.'|! stock, or a local, national or intemational labor
panization that

(1) I'\\.'“H]F'lli‘-L'l.l1l| members, some or all of whom are vested with
the power and authority to operate or admimster the

orgamzation, pursuant to the orgamzation’s articles, bylaws,

constifution or other formal orgamzational documents;

Expressly states the quahifications and requirements for
membership 1n its articles, bylaws, constitution or other formal
organzational documents;

Makes its articles, bylaws, constitution, or other formal

organizational documents available to its members upon request

Expressly solicits persons to

P, 5UCH a5
5 namc

on a membership newsletter list; and

(vi) 1s not orgamized primanly for the purpose of influencing the

nomination for election, or ¢lection, of any individual to Federal

office
(Emphasis added.)
“Members” are defined in the revised regulations at 11 CF.R. § 114.1(e}2) as

including “all persons who are currently satisiving the requirements for membershup u

membershup orgamzation, affirmatively accept the membership organization’s imvil
o become a member, and either

(1) Have some sigmificant finan

orgamzalion, such




predetermined by the orgamzation; or

(m) Hawve a significant orgamzational attachment to the membership

creamzation which includes
{ 1) affirmation of member: *1||' on at leasl an ann

(2) direct participatory nghts in the govemance of the

orgamzation. For example, such nghts could include

the nght to vole directly or indirectly for at least one
individual on the membership organization’

highest governing board;

the neht to vote directly for organization '-11‘..'.L-'L'13'|.
the nght to vote on policy questions where the
highest governing body of the membershiy

organization 15 obligated 1o abide b

the nght to approve the organization

h\-'l__-'.

the nght to participate directly in sim

the organizatl IJ"!'I'II 5 BOVEIMancc

(Emphases added)

IV. ANALYSIS OF AIPAC AS A “MEMBERSHIP ORGANIZATION"
PURSUANT TO THE NEW REGULATIONS

According to the response submitted on March 16, 1989 to the complaint in

MUR 2804, AIPAC was incorporated as a non-profit organization in 1963,

s

received status as a Section 501 (e)4) orgamzation. The response also asserted: “While
AIPAC always has had members in some form, it officially became a membership

orgamzation open (o individual parlicipants in 1969." Response, page 9 :

I'he response cited an attached alfidavit signed by Bernard Winte in support of AIPA(
claim to have been a membership orgamzation since 1969, In hus affidavit Mr. Whate stated that
he wai then servang as treasurer of AIPAC, that he was “familiar with AIPAC s operations since
is foundme™ and that he had “watnessed the evolutio { the

no mization from its inception 1o
the present dav.” Mr. White also stated: “In 1969, AIP/

AL's became 8 membership organization

Members were requuired to pay dues. Members received a copy ol Near East Report. An




ompiaint nc luded a c Yy ol Ihe orgamzalion s

| and approved on December 6, 1988, Later, AIPALC submitied, as

[ 1its answers to Commission imterrogatonies, an amended set of By-Laws which had

been 1I.'|1':.1|u'\.-.'|5 on November 14, 1989, The |-uHm.".'|t|‘|._'_ 18 4 summary ol the "|1|;:|1|'1_1::‘.xh|p

requirements” and structure of AIPAC as provided in the

A. Members

Section | of the AIPAC By-Laws addressed lek'lll]'k'r"i-'F' requirements, rencw al

requirements, and the rights of members to participate 1n the orgamization

both the 1988 and the 1989 version, AIPAC members wes

1) Individuals for whom a membership application, form or
card has been completed and who pay annual dues as set by
he Executive Commitice (as descnibed in Section 2). In
selting dues the Executive Commuittee may create different
categones of membership depending upon the amount of
s paid, and

Ihe chief lay officer of cach organization tl

il 15 4 member
of the Conference of Presidents of Major Amencan Jewish
Organizations may become a member without payment of
lues

i

Membership was renewable on a yearly ba Section 1{b)

tion 1(c) of both versions addressed members' nghts to participate

Organiz

of the Executive Commuitiee ( lescnbed in

al framework was established to rase fund

= AIPAC s palicy

SITG tha E" Tl W S 1IN the ||'-'|'|:._,:I|u::n1ll:: L Fa i R Lo
conduct that was the subject of MLUR 2804, no attempt has been made to ascertam ol AP AL
By-Laws have been further amended since 989, To reflect the ¢

s TCY |'-l:'l.| e ;'l.l-l.'.|'|' b

report dizscusses the |YEK-ED By-Laws in the past lense




and all other Commuitices (as descnbed in Sect

Mlicers (as descnbed in Sechion

lescnibed in Section 5), shall be

AIPAC members (as descnibed in Section

All members shall receive AIPAC publications and are

entitled to recerve mformation regarding voting records ol

Members of Congress

1) Each member shall receave notice of the Annual Pohcy

Conference. Each member may attend the Annual Policy

Conference. Members attending the Annual Policy

Conlerence may vole on the Annual Policy statement

B, Structure and Decision Making
As indicated above, in 1988-89 the highest decision-making body in AIPAC
the Executive Commatiee which functioned as the board of directors. 1988 and 1989 H,
Laws, Section 2.' The members of the Executive Commuttee included the chuefl lay
officers of other oreanizations that were members of the Conference of Presidents of
Major American Jewish Organizations. For each such chief lay officer, there were to be
no more than live other members of the Executive Commutiee, mcluding up 1o six
individuals appoinied by the President.” Members of the Executive Committee were
ed by the Nominating Committee for terms of one year ang

majority of the members of the Executive Commuttee present
the Executive Commuittee were mited to five yvear terms, although they could retum to

the Committee afler o :-..d_‘:IT"i absence: the five vear terms did not include penods dunng

pembership on the Executive Con
By 1992 the number had 1

ted on behall of AIPAC in MUR 2804

'he provision of five other members per each lay ofheer was added via the 1989 amendment




which the individual was on the Committee by virtue of being a
another organization or an officer of AIPAC
Section 3 of the 1989 By-Laws limited the number of officers to twenty-three

individuals who met ten times a vear. They included the President, the Chairman of the

Board, the Vice-Presidents, Secretary and Treasurer, the Regional Vice-Presidents, and
the Honorary Presidents who were former presidents of the orgamzation and officers for
life with full voting privileges. The numbers of Vice-Presidents and Regional Vice-
Presidents were set by the Commuittee of Officers with the consent of the Executive
Commuttee. The officers were selected by the Executive Commuttee acting upon the
Nominating Commutiee’s recommendations. The President could also designate a Stale

Chair in cach state; such State Chairs could in tum attend Executive Commitiee meetings

but were not deemed members of the Committee and were not entitled to vote

According to the 1989 By-Laws, Section 4, the National Council was made up of

the same number of members as those who were eligible to be members of the Executive
Commuttee. The Council acted as an advisory body. Its members were nominated by the
Nominating Commuttee and elected by a majonty of the Executive Commuttee present
and voting. Members of the Council served no more than five one-year terms, but could
be re-clected afier a one-year absence

Pursuant to both versions of the By-Laws at Section 9, the Nominating Commuttee
consisied of seven members. The President of AIPAC appointed the chair of the
Committee, three additional members and two alternates; according

amendments two of this group were 1o be members of the Executive Commuttee. The

Committee of Officers appointed an additional three members, with one comung from the




Execulive Commitice as of the 1989 amendments. Members of the Exccutive Commiites

could submit additional n lon contaimed the s1g

less than 20% of the Executive Commutiee. No nominations from the floor were

p:.'rrmllu:u.l Members of the N iminating Commuitles served for one vear

Amendments to the By-Laws could be voled at any regular meeting of th

Executive Committee by a majonity of those present and voting

As stated above, the GC Briel and the subseguent GC Report in MUR 2804

recommended that the Commission lind probable cause to beheve that AIPAC had

violated 2 US.C. § 44

I’ M P .y, | 3 . -
S%1D 1IN largc par by directing parisan com

who were not "members” and thus outside the orgamzation's restricted class. In support

of this recommendation, the Brief and Report applied the NRWC cnitena 1o AIPAL

structure and particularly to the nghts and obligations of these whom it deemed

“members.,” The Brief and Report concluded that individuals who belonged to AIPAC,

with the exception of those on the Executive Commuttee, did not have sufficient rights to

participate in its governance to qualify as “members.” Even though these individuals had

paid a prodctermined amount of ducs, 1t was

sigmicant thal they could nol »

for the Executive Commuttee, the National Council’s members or the officers; rail

Executive Commitlee elected itself and the Nalional Council, as well as the office

a 1ICETS
Further, the Brief and Report noted that, while those who belonged to the organization

could attend the vearly Policy micrence and vote on the Pohiey Statement, only a sma

portion of these individuals attended the Conference. Acknowledging that ™l 1s

ol &

question whether persons who belong to AIPAC qualify as members for purposes of the

and that there were a ni 1 on the Execulive




Commiltee could participate in the organization, (GC Report, pages 19-21), this Office
emphasized the role of the Executive Committee as the governing body, the fact that the
Commutiee elected its own members as well as the officers of the organization, and 1t
small numbers compared 1o the total number of AIPAC “members™ (37,104 in 1989)
With these factors before it, the Commission found probable cause 1o believe that AIPA(
had violated 2 US.C. § 441b, although it also voled to take no further action in this
regard
Comparison of New Membership Regulations with AIPAC By-Laws

As stated above, the new regulation at 11 C.FR. § 114 (e)(1) defines
“membership organization™ as being an orgamzation “composed of members, some or all
ol whom are vested with the power and authonty to operate or administer the

organization" pursuant to a organizational document. This regulation also requires that

the organizational document set out the qualifications and requirements for membership

[herefore, the first issue now before the Commuission in determining whether

AIPAC would be deemed a “membership organization” pursuant to new 11 C.F.R

AIPAC in 1988 and 1989, but not by the Commission in MUR 2804, would have met the
defimtion of “member” now setout at 11 C.F.R. § 114.1{e)(2). In summary, this
definition requires that the individual

meel the requirements for membership esl:
i lirmmatny |;|j. accepl the orgamization’s
and either
have a significant [inancial a
h]|

¥ay dues at least annually ina s

Or




have “a significant orgamzational attachment™ by means of an annual

affimanion of i embership and “direct participatory rights in the

governance of the organization.”
AIPAC s 1988 and 1989 By-Laws al Section 1 both defined membershap as

including individuals who had completed an application, form or card (thereby

aflirmatively responding to the organization's invitation to join), and who had paid dues

*as set by the Executive Commuitee.” According to the information provided by AIPAC

dunng discovery in MUR 2804, membership dues during the time covered by the
enforcement matter were required on an annual basis and were set at a munimum of 550

(Answers (o interrogatories dated January 31, 1990.}" Given these details, AIPAC

“members” apparently met all of the requirements of the new 11 “R. & 114{e}l)

Because, pursuant to the new regulations, the payment of annual dues at a set amount 15
an alternative to finding “a significant organizational attachmemt” of the individual to the
organization, it i1s no longer necessary to pursue the issue of decision-making roles within
the orgamzation in order to establish that AIPAC had “"members™ in 1988 and 1989
beyond those individuals who served on the Executive Commitiee

'he next step in determiming AIPACS status as a membership organization under

new |1 C.F.R. § 114.1(e)(1) for purposes of MUR 2804 1s to ascertain whether at least

some of these “members” were in the lale 1980°s “vested with the power and authonty to

¢ or administer the organization According to Section 2(a) of the 1988 and

e vanous apphication/pledge forms submutted on January 11, 1990 with these answer
th regard to the descriptions of payments being sought. One was designated a

rstup Form™ and contained the words “basis membershup dues.” while others used

nbership contnibution.” Still others stated: “To support the

vital work of the American
Affairs Commitiee

. Lam attaching a check for § 5,000, for another figure| wit

ce to "dues.” Some did not expressly cite 350 as a required mimmum amount




1989 By-Laws, the AIPAC Executive Committee “controlled” the “policy, affairs and
property” of the oreamization. All members of the Executive Commitiee and of the

National Council and the officers had to be members of the oreamization. (1988 and | 989

By-Laws, Section 1(c)). Thus, some of the “members” of the orj

anization were “vested

with power and authonty.”

the new regulations are

Ihree additional eriteria for a membership organization ir
that the organization “‘expressly states the qualifications and requirements for
membership” in its organizational documents; that it “expressly solicits” members; and
that it “expressly acknowledges the acceptance of membership” with a card or by putting
the individual's name on a newsletter hist. AIPAC’s 1988 and 1989 By-Laws, as stated
above, expressly set out requirements for membership at Section 1. Regarding
solicitation of new members, information submitted with AIPAC’s January 30, 1990
response to the Commission’s request for documents included copies of solicitation

letters sent out in 1988 and 1989, (See Exhibit 5 attached to January 30, 1990

submission). These letters invited the recipient to join the orgamization and stated, in

some form, that “AIPAC membership” began at $50. While no actual membership cards

were produced in connection with the 1988 and 1989 solicitation letters, AIPAC's
January 30, 1990 answer to interrogatones included a histing of publications made
available to those who joined, including the weekly Near East Report sent to all who paid
the $50 minimum contribution; the answer also Listed meetings, conferences and other

activities available only 1o members. Thus, new members were mformed ol the

acceplance of their membership through the receipt of publications and other information




Another requirement of membership organizations set out at new 11 C.F.R
§ 114.(e)(1) 1s that a potential membership organization “nol be orgamzed primanly for

the purpose of influencing”™ federal elections. This was the conclusion reached in

MUR 2804 with regard to AIPAC, with the result that the Commuission found no probable

cause to believe that the orgamization had violated 2 U.S5.C. §§ 433 and 434.

The remaining cnitena for a “membership organization” at 11 CF.R. § 114.1(eX1)
is that it make “its articles, bylaws, constitution, or other formal orgamzational
documents available to its members upon request.” While AIPAC, in the context of
MUR 2804, was apparently never asked about its policy regarding the provision of
organizational documents to ils members, there 15 no indication in the record that these
documents were not available upon request

Given the information outlined above, it appears that AIPAC in its 1988 and 1989
manifestations would have met the critena for a “membership organization™ as set out in
thenew 11 C.F.R. § 114.(e)(1). It had *members,” some of whom had the power and
authority to run the organization; its organizational documents “expressly state[d] the
qualifications and requirements for membership” and were apparently made available to
its members; it “expressly solicit{ed)] persons to become members”; it kept membership
lists for the purpose of providing members with publications and other information on a
regular basis; and it did not have as its primary purpose the influencing of elections
V. CONCLUSIONS

In light of the status of AIPAC as a membership orgamization during the penod
covered by MUR 2804, and of the fact that 2 high proportion of the activities at issue n

MUR 2804 were directed st AIPAC members and thus constituted “membership




communications” which were outside the defimtion of “expenditures,” the 1ssue of
AIPAC's political commitiee status dunng the period covered by the complaint in
MUR 2804 has, as anticipated by the U.S. Supreme Court, become effectively moot
[herefore, the Commission’s determination that there was no probable cause 1o believe
AIPAC had violated 2 1J.S.C. §§ 433 and 434 by failing to register and report as a
polincal commuittee should remain undisturbed.
As noted previously, the Commission's determinations regarding alleged
violations of 2 U.S.C. § 441b were not challenged in the lawsuit filed pursuant to
2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)8), so that aspect of MUR 2804 is not addressed in the remands from
the Supreme Court and the lower courts, The bases for the Commission’s finding of
probable cause to believe that AIPAC had violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b included the
following
(1) The organization’s acknowledged role of acting as a contact

between its “members” and candidates or fundraisers working for

candidates. This involved either putiing members and candidates

in touch with each other, or suggesting to representatives of

candidates particular persons it would be potentially advantageous

lo contact.

(2) The organization’s acknowledged collection and distnbution of
candidate position papers, which constituted in effect the

republication of campaign materials
(See GC Report dated May 29, 1992, at pages 25-26 )

An additional basis was the argamization’s preparation and distnbution to members of vearly
 + | ; |

‘campaign updates” that covered the voting records and positions of incumbents and that rated

their election prospects and fundraising status, to the extent that the updates reflected what
AIPAC had learned about the campaigns [rom its meetings with candidates. Given the
discussion above concerming the application of the Commussion’s new membership regulations to
AIPAC, this particular basis would no longer be appropnate for finding a violanon of 2 ULS.C

§ 441b. Another basis, the orgamzation’s efforts to contact “members” who were also




Even if the Commission’s new membership regulations were applied to the

Section 441b issue, and were found to have changed the original analysis with regard 1o

AIPAC expenditures for communications to its members, information obtained during the
investigation in MUR 2804 revealed that there were instances, particularly involving the
distribution of candidate position papers and discussions with candidates or their

{undraisers about ru_-.t::nu;l.l contacts, in which the 1:wn‘.hr.-rnﬁn;3 1Ss5Ue was nol

determinative. As stated above, the collection and distnbution of candidate positior

papers is essentially the republication of campaign matenals, which alone would have
constituted prohibited corporate expenditures, pursuant to 11 CF.R. § 114.3(c){(n)

I'he AIPAC contacts with candidates and their committees, and the distnibution of
candidate position papers, were not quantified during the investigation in MUR 2804
because these activities were analyzed at that time as part of the overall 15s5ue of
communications outside AIPAC’s membership; however, these AIPAC activities provide
continuing support for the Commussion’s finding of probable cause to believe that AIPAC
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b. The lack of valuation in turn supports the Commission’s
determination to take no further action in this regard

VI. RECOMMENDATIONS

Find, in hight of revised 11 CF.R. § 114.1(e)1), that AIPAC was a
membership organization durning the penod addressed in MUR 2804

associated with one of the Jewish PAC s to urge Ninancial support [or specilic candidates,
problematic in hight of the new repulations




Adhere to the Commission’s deierminations of no P‘.l'}‘.jr'-ll.' cause 1o believe
that AIPAC violated 2 US o 433 1

Close the file in MUR 2804R

Approve the appropriate letters

4

> -é;ﬂﬁ__ *"/:,/H ( A’
Drate : I.w.r._ we M n!‘ll.'

General Counsel

olafl Assigned: Anne A. Weissenbom




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

Washinglon, DC 20463

MEMORANDUM

TO: LAWRENCE M. NOBLE
GENERAL COUNSEL )

1 p|

FROM MARY W. DOVE/VENESHE FEREBEE-VINES
COMMISSION SECRETARY

DATE MARCH 14, 2000

SUBJECT: MUR 2804R - General Cousel's Report
dated March 8, 2000

The above-captioned document was circulated to the Commission

on Thursday, March 9, 2000.

Objection(s) have been received from the Commissioner(s) as
indicated by the name(s) checked below:
Commissioner Elliott
Commissioner Mason
Commissioner McDonald
Commissioner Sandstrom
Commissioner Thomas

Commissioner Wold

This matter will be placed on the meeting agenda for Tuesday,
March 21, 2000. Please notify us who will represent your Division before the

Commission on this matter




BEFURE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
In the Matter of

MUER ZG00U4R
American Israel Public
Affairs Committee

CERTIFICATION

1, Darlene Harris, racording secretary for the Federal
Election Commission executive session on March 21, 20400,
do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of
6-0 to take the following actions with respect toe MUR 2804R:
1. Find, in light of revised 11 CFR § 114.1l(e) (1),
that American Israel Public Affairs Committee
was a membership organization during the
periocd addressed in MUR 2804.
Adhere to the Commission's determinations of
no probable cause to believe that American
Israel Public Affairs Committee violated
2 U.85.C. §8 433 and 434.
Close the file in MUR 2B04R.
4. Approve the appropriate letters.

Commissioners Ellicott, Mason, McDonald, Sandatrom,

Thomas, and Wold voted affirmatively for the decision.

Attest:

ma.nj\., 2, Ae0o

Date / Darlene Harris
Acting Deputy Secretary
of the Commission




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D C 20461

Philip Fniedman, General Counsel
Amencan Israel Public Affairs Committee
Ifshin & Friedman, PLLC

Suite 4040

BE8 Sixteenth Street, NW

Washington, DC 20006

RE: MUR 2804R

Dear Mr Friedman

On March 21, 2000, the Federal Election Commission reevaluated its findings in
MUR 2804, pursuant to the United States Supreme Court’s remand of FEC v. Akins, et al.,
524 U.5. 11 (1998), and in light of the Commission’s revised regulations addressing
“membership organizations” and the definition of “members™ whi i became final on
November 2, 1999, The Commission found, in light of revised 11 C.F.R. § 114.1(e)(1), that the
American Israel Public Affairs Committee (“AIPAC™) was a membership organization during the
period addressed in MUR 2804. The Commission also voted to adhere to its determinations of
no probable cause to believe that AIPAC violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434, and to close the file
in MUR 2804R.

If you have any questions, please contact Anne A. Weissenborm. the senior attormey
assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,
o
il o A
A A ‘
Lo [ ¢
Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGCTON DI Il |}

Daniel M. Schember, Esquire
Gaffney & Schember, P.C
Suite 225

1666 Connecticut Avenue, N'W
Washington, DC 20009

RE: MUR 2804R
Amernican Israel Public Affairs Commitlee

Dear Mr. Schember:

On March 21, 2000, the Federal Election Commission reevaluated its findings in
MUR 2804, pursuant to the United States Supreme Court’s remand in FEC v. Akins,
et al., 524 U.S. 11 (1998), and in light of the Commission’s revised regulations
addressing “membership organizations” and the definition of “members™ which became
final on November 2, 1999. The Commission found, in light of revised 11 C.F.R.
§ 114.1(e)(1), that the American Isracl Public Affairs Committee (“AIPAC"™) was a
membership orgamzation during the period addressed in MUR 2804. The Commission
also voted to adhere to its determinations of no probable cause to believe that AIPAC
violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433 and 434, and to close the file m MUR 2804R.

The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows complainants to
seek judicial review of the Commission's determinations in this matter. See 2 US.C.
§ 437g(a)(8)

If you have any questions, please contact Anne A. Weissenbom, the senior
attomey assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1650

Sincerely,
- i i ; i 1
Pl r

() atvrence M 'f‘:itihl-:
General Counsel

Enclosure
General Counsel’s Repont




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

April 4, 2000

Philip Friedman, General Counsel
Amenican Israel Public Affairs Committee
Ifshin & Friedman, PLLC

Suite 400

BBE Sixteenth Street, NW
Washingion, DC 20006

RE: MUR 2804R

Dear Mr. Friedman:

Enclosed please find a copy of the General Counsel’s Report which was before
the Commission at the time of its most recent decisions in MUR 2804R.

If you have further questions, please call me at (202) 1694-1650.

Sincerely,

4 f _.,'.__...
s Lo 'y

L R

Anne. A. Weissenbom
Senior Attomey

Lk

L,
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